
AGENDA 
 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
10:00 a.m., Thursday, December 4, 2008 

 
RAMADA INN 

420 SE Sixth Street 
Topeka, Kansas 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Minutes of November 7, 2008 

D. COMMISSION ITEMS 

1. KHA Reimbursement from Kansas Bred Program 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Neysa Thomas, Chief Fiscal Officer 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of expenses and partial   
     reimbursement 
a. Staff Memo 
b. KHA Request 
c. Income and cash flow 
 

2. Kansas Horsemen’s Association Compliance Audit for year ended December 31, 2007 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. Staff Memo 
b. KRGC Compliance Audit Memo 
c. Balance Sheet 
d. Profit & Loss Statement 
 

3. Non-approval of the Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board’s August 22, 2008, 
recommendation of Sumner Gaming Joint Venture LLC, dba Harrah’s Kansas 
Commission Action:  Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation:  Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the motion 
a. Staff Memo 

 

12.04.08  Agenda - Page 1 



12.04.08  Agenda - Page 2 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

F. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Executive Director 

2. Chief Gaming Officer 

3. Assistant Attorneys General 

4. Calendar Review 
a. Commission Meeting Calendar 

G. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

1. Attorney-client Communication 

2. Lottery Gaming Facility Background Investigation Reports 

H. OTHER BUSINESS 

I. ADJOURNMENT 



Page 1 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES – November 7, 2008 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
(A.) 

 Chair Sader called the November 7, 2008, meeting to order at 9:05 
am at 700 SW Harrison, Auditorium B, Suite 460, Topeka, Kansas.  
Commissioners Sader, Braun, Falstad, and Schwan were present 
when the meeting convened.  Commissioner McKechnie joined the 
meeting at 9:30 am.  Others present included Executive Director 
Stephen Martino; Chief Gaming Officer Robert Krehbiel; Director of 
Racing Frances Snell; Assistant Attorneys General Patrick Martin and 
Teri Canfield-Eye; Director of Security Don Brownlee; Director of 
Communications/Responsible Gaming Mike Deines; Director of 
Administration Don Cawby; Commission Recording Secretary Linda 
Pendarvis and other staff.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA: 
(B.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the agenda as 
submitted.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
OCTOBER 23, 2008, 
MEETING MINUTES: 
(C.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Braun) moved to approve the minutes of the 
October 23, 2008, commission meeting as submitted.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

   
DISCUSSION, KANSAS 
GREYHOUND REGISTRY 
COMPLIANCE AUDIT: 
(D.1.) 

 The Commission heard David Schultz, Chief Audit Officer, review 
the Kansas Greyhound Registry Compliance Audit for the year ended 
December 31, 2007.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
KANSAS GREYHOUND 
REGISTRY COMPLIANCE 
AUDIT: 
(D.1.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Braun) moved for approval of the report and 
related financial statements as presented.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

   
CALL FOR PUBLIC 
COMMENTS: 
(E.) 

 Chair Sader called for public comments.   
• Jerry Johnson, board member Kansas Horsemen’s Association

   
STAFF REPORT, 
MARTINO: 
(F.1.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martino.  Among items 
for discussion was approval of the following dates for upcoming 
commission meetings: 

• Friday, January 23 
• Thursday, February 19 
• Friday, March 13 
• Thursday, April 16 

C.1 (1 of 3)



November 7, 2008 
Page 2 

• Friday, May 15 
• Friday, June 12 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
KREHBIEL: 
(F.2.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Krehbiel. 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
ASSISTANT ATTORNEYS 
GENERAL: 
(F.3.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Ms. Canfield-Eye. 

   
STAFF REPORT, CAWBY: 
(F.4.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Cawby.  Expanding on 
Mr. Martino’s presentation of upcoming meeting dates, he explained 
that going forward the goal will be to hold KRGC commission 
meetings on the first Friday on or before the 11th of each month. 

   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
(G.1.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved that the commission go into 
executive session from 9:25 am to 10:00 am for the purpose of 
attorney-client communication.  Those included in the executive 
session were the commission, Mr. Martino, Mr. Krehbiel, Mr. Martin, 
Ms. Canfield-Eye and Jay Hall, Review Board Liaison.  No action is 
to be taken in executive session, and the subjects discussed are to be 
limited as previously described.  A full record of this motion is to be 
maintained as a part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing 
and Gaming Commission.  At the conclusion of the executive 
session, the meeting is to be continued in open session.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 10:00 am with all members 

present as previously noted.   
   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
(G.1.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Braun) moved to continue the previous 
executive session until 10:30 am.  Those included in the executive 
session were the commission, Mr. Martino, Mr. Krehbiel, Mr. Martin, 
Ms. Canfield-Eye and Jay Hall, Review Board Liaison.  No action is 
to be taken in executive session, and the subjects discussed are to be 
limited as previously described.  A full record of this motion is to be 
maintained as a part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing 
and Gaming Commission.  At the conclusion of the executive 
session, the meeting is to be continued in open session.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 10:30 am with all members 

present as previously noted.   
   
   
   

C.1 (2 of 3)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
November 7, 2008 
Page 3 
   
   
   
ADJOURN:  Commissioner McKechnie (Braun) moved to adjourn at 10:32 am.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
   
   
SUBMITTED BY:   
   
   

   
William Falstad   
Secretary   
   
   

APPROVED BY:   
   
   

   
Carol H. Sader   
Chair   
 

C.1 (3 of 3)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE OF MEETING: December 4, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  KHA Reimbursement from Kansas Bred Program 
 
PRESENTER:  Neysa Thomas, Chief Fiscal Officer 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Kansas Horsemen’s Association (KHA) is requesting reimbursement 
of $2,144.21 for expenses incurred for the operation of the Kansas Bred Program in August 2008. 
The expenses presented for reimbursement are consistent with expenses incurred by the KHA in the 
past.  
 
The Kansas Horsemen’s Association’s request is subject to availability of funds and the KHA is 
aware that funds are currently not available to cover all expenses for August 2008.  The account 
balance as of 10-31-08 is $539.47. 
 
The Commission is authorized by K.S.A. 74-8830 to “contract with and designate an official 
registering agency to implement the registration of horses.” The Commission’s contract with the 
KHA provides that funds shall be withdrawn from the Kansas Bred Program account only for 
maintaining and administering the program in accordance with the agreement and only with the prior 
approval of the Commission or the Commission's executive director. 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission discussion, 
consideration and possible action on the request for reimbursement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval of the expenses and a partial 
reimbursement in the amount of $500.00.  The KHA may request the balance of August 2008 
operating expenses when funds become available. 
 
 

D.1.a



D.1.b



D.1.c (1 of 3)



D.1.c (2 of 3)



D.1.c (3 of 3)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: December 4, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Presentation of KRGC compliance audit of Kansas 

Horsemen’s Association (“KHA”) for the year ended 
December 31, 2007. 

 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security, KRGC  
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   Commission staff conducted a compliance audit of the KHA for 

2007.   

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and discussion 
of report and financial statements. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends the report and related financial 
statements be approved, as presented, by the Commission. 

 

 

 

D.2.a



700 SW Harrison, Suite 420, Topeka, Kansas 66603 
(785) 296-5800  Fax (785) 296-0900 Kansas Racing and 

Gaming Commission 

Memo 
To: Stephen L. Martino, Executive Director, KRGC 

From:   Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security, KRGC 

   

Date: October 30, 2008 

Re: Compliance Audit of Kansas Horsemen’s Association 

 We have performed a compliance audit of the Kansas Horsemen’s Association (“KHA”) operations for 
the year ended December 31, 2007.  This compliance audit is substantially less in scope than an audit 
of financial statements in accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards as promulgated by the 
Auditing Standards Board of the AICPA.  KRGC is not independent with respect to the KHA. 

The KHA contracts with the KRGC to serve as the official horse registering agency for Kansas, in 
accordance with K.S.A. 74-8830.   

We have attached the Balance Sheet of the KHA at December 31, 2007 and the related Profit & Loss 
Statement for the KHA for the year ended December 31, 2007.   

Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet reflects an increase of cash and equity during the year ended December 31, 2007. 
The cause for the increase in cash and equity results principally from the net income for the year.  

Office equipment with acquisition costs of $2,494 is fully depreciated.  

Liabilities shown relate to payroll taxes payable by the Association at the end of 2007. 

Profit & Loss Statement  

The KHA had net income in 2007 of $10,287.  In 2006, the Association had a loss of $2,700.   

Findings 

We noted a significant lack of segregation of duties because the Association’s bookkeeper is the only 
employee of KHA and, consequently, she performs virtually all the recordkeeping and reconciliation 
processes that underlie the financial and other data we audited.  This is typical in an organization of this 
size and is usually mitigated by oversight performed by others in a position to review her work.  Some 
review is performed and adjustments made during the annual tax preparation but daily work is typically 
not reviewed.  

We noted no issues of non-compliance by the KHA, with the rules and regulations of the KRGC, that 
would require disclosure to the Commission in this report. 

D.2.b



D.2.c



D.2.d



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE OF MEETING: December 4, 2008 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Non-approval of the Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board’s 

recommendation of Sumner Gaming Joint Venture, LLC 
(d/b/a Harrah’s Kansas). 

 
PRESENTER: Patrick D. Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   On August 22, 2008, the Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board selected 
Sumner Gaming Joint Venture, LLC (d/b/a Harrah’s Kansas) as the manager of a gaming facility 
in the south central gaming zone.  The Review Board then forwarded that recommendation on to 
the KRGC.  Since that recommendation, Sumner Gaming Joint Venture, LLC has voluntarily 
withdrawn from consideration as a lottery gaming facility manager.  Without another applicant in 
that gaming zone, the state would like to restart the selection process.   

 
To aid in restarting that process, the KRGC should formally “not approve” the Review 

Board’s recommendation.  That action is called for under the express language of the Kansas 
Expanded Lottery Act.  Specifically, KELA provides that the process for selection of a lottery 
gaming facility manager “shall begin again” if the KRGC “does not approve the 
recommendation of the lottery gaming facility review board.”  K.S.A. 74- 8736(e).  In full, that 
provision of KELA states:  
 

Upon completion of such investigations and approval of the background of 
the prospective lottery gaming facility manager . . . but not more than 10 
days after receiving the recommendation of the lottery gaming facility 
review board, the Kansas racing and gaming commission shall vote to 
approve in whole or reject in whole the recommendation of the lottery 
gaming facility review board. If the Kansas racing and gaming 
commission does not approve the background of such prospective lottery 
gaming facility manager, directors, officers and other persons having an 
interest in such prospective manager or does not approve the 
recommendation of the lottery gaming facility review board, the Kansas 
racing and gaming commission shall notify the executive director of the 
lottery and the process for selection of a lottery gaming facility manager 
shall begin again in the manner provided in sections 3 and 4, and 
amendments thereto. 

 
Id. (emphasis added). 
 
 Both the KRGC counsel and the Lottery are in agreement that, under KELA’s language, 
the KRGC should formally “not approve the recommendation of the lottery gaming facility 
review board” to begin the selection process in the south central zone again. 

D.3.a (1 of 2)



 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED 
 

Staff suggests the following motion:   
 
“In light of Sumner Gaming Joint Venture, LLC’s voluntary withdrawal from the south 

central gaming zone, the KRGC does not approve the August 22, 2008, recommendation of the 
Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board.  The KRGC makes this final decision so that the Kansas 
Lottery may restart the application process in the south central zone.  To be clear, this is not a 
decision on Sumner Gaming Joint Venture, LLC’s background.” 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends adopting the motion not approving the 
Review Board’s recommendation for the south central gaming zone. 
 
 
 
 
 

D.3.a (2 of 2)



F.4.a


	2008-12-04 Agenda
	Page 2

	C.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	C.1  2008-11-07 commission minutes

	D.  COMMISSION ITEMS
	D.1  KHA Reimbursement from Kansas Bred Program
	D.1.a  Staff Memo
	D.1.b  KHA Request for Reimbursement
	D.1.c  Income and Cashflow

	D.2  KHA 2007 Compliance Audit
	D.2.a  SAM KHA Audit 2007
	D.2.b  Memo for 2007 KHA Audit Engagement
	D.2.c  Balance Sheet
	D.2.d  Profit & Loss Statement

	D.3  Non-Approval of LGFRB recommendation of Sumber Gaming Joint Venture, dba Harrah's Kansas
	D.3.a  SAM for Sumner Gaming Joint Venture Harrahs Withdrawal


	F.  STAFF REPORTS
	F.4.a  Commission Meeting Calendar




